E.AR
5 Chiswick Place Eastbourne
epp ar East Sussex BN21 4NH

tel: 01323 410478

CONSULTING CIVIL AND email: admin@earsheppard.co.uk
STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

Your ref:

Our ref: E8582/RJS 31 October 2019

Hooe Parish Council

Dear Sirs

Village Hall, Denbigh Road, Hooe, Battle, East Sussex

Thank you for your instruction to complete a limited structural inspection of the above and to report
our findings.

Our inspection was completed on 17 September 2019. No opening up or specialist investigation was
completed. We were able to inspect the attic space only from one of the loft hatches. Inspection of
external flat roofs was by ladder only.

References to location are made in relation to either compass north or as facing the front elevation. For
the purpose of this report the front elevation faces west.

We are not aware the building is either listed or within a conservation area.

The original single storey detached building comprises of masonry (assumed solid) elevations with a
pitched roof over. External elevations are in painted render.

A single storey extension exists at the rear across the width of the building again in masonry elevations
but with a flat roof over. It appears to differently aged additions exist to the front right creating the
kitchen and entrance hall again in masonry elevations with a pitched and flat roof over respectively.

Archive records from the Sussex Agricultural Express suggest the hall was built by November 1912 as a
reading room for the village of Hooe constructed by Mr Horace Taylor at a cost of £300.00.
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An historic drawing found on the internet suggests the building was originally only three approximate 9’
long x 19’ 6" wide bays with a small externally accessed outhouse attached to the rear left now being
four bays in length plus the flat roof rear addition.

—

Roof Coverings & Roof Structure:

1) As viewed from ground level and from ladder access at eaves level the main roof covering to the
pitches is in clay tiles with locally missing, broken &/or slipped tiles requiring replacement &/or
shuffling. There is some minor undulation to the main roof pitches which is to be expected of a
building of such age/arrangement/construction. Local disturbance exists to roof tiles such as the
rear right corner where tiles are at risk of falling.

7) Thermal upgrade/improvement is needed to the attic floor and skeilings (sloping ceilings) while

maintaining attic cross ventilation.

9) A water test is needed to confirm all roof water is collected & routed away adequately. Gutters
and downpipes are in poor corroded condition with stop ends locally missing and local joints
leaking requiring replacement. Periodic clearing will be needed of all gutters, hoppers,
downpipes, outlets, etc going forward.
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Foundations, Sub-Structure & Superstructure:
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Ground Bearing and Suspended Floors:

Dampness, Wet/Dry Rot & Infestation:
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Chimney Stacks, Breasts & Flues:
36) No chimney breast or stack was observed.
37) Flues should be kept well ventilated.

Internal Walls, Partitions, Ceilings, Skeilings & Finishes:

41) Internal decorations are aged requiring redecoration. You should expect at least local repair of
. finishes. Hollow/de-bonded plaster should be replaced.

External Joinery, Doors & Windows:

Site & Garden:
48) A small lawn area exists to the left of the building which we understand is part of the site.

. Your
solicitor should check and confirm both boundary positions and liability/responsibility for such.

50) Denbigh Road is particularly narrow with very limited parking outside the building. No off-road
parking exists.

51) We have not checked the timber shed along the right flank elevation which shows significant

lean.
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Generally:

56) Electrics & plumbing lie outside our experience/remit and should be checked by competent &
experienced contractors/consultants.

57) No fire detection and/or alarm system was observed in the building. We recommend an
experienced and qualified Fire Consultant attend the building and advise on requirements.
No mains gas exists in the village of Hooe.

We have not had sight of any existing guarantees for work completed to the building.

Quotations should be obtained from at least three experienced local contractors for the necessary
updating/maintenance and repair/redecoration however until such quotations are obtained we suggest
the following budget costs be considered/expected:

Item: Budget Cost (£):

xix) Internal redecoration £6,000.00
Total: £155,000.00 excluding VAT.

The above costs do not include kitchen/cloakroom updating, electrics/plumbing updating or works to
repair/stabilise the rear addition. Works to repair/stabilise the rear addition would be expected to fall
under a building insurance claim. If accepted it is likely a policy excess (typically £1,000.00 no VAT) will
apply to the insurance claim.
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Please note that we have not inspected woodwork or other parts of the structure which are covered,
unexposed or inaccessible and are, therefore, unable to report that any such part of the property is free
from defect.

Where opening up/access/investigations are recommended it is assumed any necessary recommended
repair/remedials/replacement following opening up/access/investigation is completed.

You will be aware that this letter of report is not intended as the normal RICS “Homebuyer” Report and
that we have not inspected or tested any sewers, drains or services.

This report is solely for the use & benefit of the addressee. No other party may rely on this report
unless prior agreed in writing by EAR Sheppard Consulting Civil & Structural Engineers Ltd. Should it be
agreed that a third party may rely on this report all fees due to EAR Sheppard Consulting Civil &
Structural Engineers Ltd must have been paid.

We trust that this letter of report is sufficient for your immediate requirements but should you have
any queries, or if we can be of further assistance please do not hesitate to contact us.

Yours faithfully

A,

RJ Sheppard
BEng (Hons) CEng MICE
EAR Sheppard Consulting Civil & Structural Engineers Limited

/
/
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